
Ds:CPC/2016/2016-01-19 Minutes.doc   

CITY OF RICHARDSON 
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES – FEBRUARY 2, 2016 

 
The Richardson City Plan Commission met on February 2, 2016, at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall in the 
Council Chambers, 411 W. Arapaho Road, Richardson, Texas. 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Gerald Bright, Chairman 
  Ron Taylor, Vice Chair 
  Janet DePuy, Commissioner 
  Bill Ferrell, Commissioner 
  Marilyn Frederick, Commissioner 
  Thomas Maxwell, Commissioner 
  Randy Roland, Commissioner 
  Stephen Springs, Alternate  
  Ken Southard, Alternate 
   
CITY STAFF PRESENT: Sam Chavez, Assistant Director – Dev. Svcs. – Planning 
  Dan Tracy, Development Engineer 
  Israel Roberts, Development Review Manager 
  Chris Shacklett, Senior Planner 
  Kathy Welp, Executive Secretary 
 
BRIEFING SESSION 
 
Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff regarding 
staff reports and agenda items.  No action was taken. 
 
MINUTES 
 
1. Approval of the minutes of the regular business meeting of January 19, 2016. 

 
Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to approve the minutes as presented; second 

by Vice Chair Taylor.  Motion approved 7-0. 
 

CONSENT ITEMS 
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Plan Commission 
and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion of these 
items unless desired, in which case any item(s) may be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate 
consideration. 

 
2. Site Plan and Landscape Plan – Datacenter Park (companion to Item 4):  A request for 

approval of site and landscape plans for a 471,940 square foot data center.  The 20.66-acre site 
is located at 907 Security Row and 1210 Integrity Drive at the northwest corner of Security Row 
and International Parkway. 
 

3. Final Plat – Bush Central Station West Addition:  A request for approval of a final plat for 
the Bush Central Station West Addition to dedicate public rights-of-way and easements, as well 
as create three lots.  The property is located at the southeast corner of U.S. Highway 75 (Central 
Expressway) and State Highway 190 (President George Bush Turnpike). 
 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

February 2, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-02-02 CPCMinutes.doc  2 

Motion: Commission DePuy made a motion to approve Consent Agenda as presented; second 
by Commissioner Frederick.  Motion approved 7-0. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
4. Replat – Lot 6D Block 1 of the Collins Technology Park Addition (companion to Item 2):  

Consider and take necessary action on a request for approval of a replat to combine two (2) lots 
into one (1) and dedicate easements. The 20.66-acre site is located at 907 Security Row at the 
northwest corner of Security Row and International Parkway. 
 
Mr. Roberts stated the applicant was requesting a replat to combine two lots and dedicate 
easements necessary to develop the datacenter previously approved under Consent Agenda 
(Item 2).  He added the replat complied with the City’s subdivision regulations. 
 
With no questions for staff, Chairman Bright opened the public hearing. 
 
No comments or questions were received in favor or opposed and Chairman Bright closed the 
public hearing. 
 
Motion: Commission Ferrell made a motion to approve Item 4 as presented; second by 

Commissioner Roland.  Motion approved 7-0. 
 

5. Zoning File 16-01 – Four Seasons Market:  Consider and take necessary action on a request 
for approval of a revised Special Permit for a temporary open air market to be located at 677 W. 
Campbell Road, south side of Campbell Road between Floyd Road and Nantucket Drive.  The 
property is currently zoned LR-M(2) Local Retail. 
 
Mr. Shacklett explained that in 2015 two Special Permits were approved for the subject 
property: 1) February – a Special Permit to allow an open air market (Market) located in the 
parking lot of the NTX Center (Center); and, 2) December - a Special Permit for K-1 Speed, a 
commercial indoor amusement go-kart facility that would occupy approximately 50,000 square 
feet of the 76,800 Center. 
 
Mr. Shacklett stated that due to the fact the earlier Special Permit limited the Market to 
operating only when the Center was not holding an event or open for business, and the fact that 
K-1 Speed would be open for business on Saturdays, the applicant was requesting an 
amendment to the Special Permit to allow the Market to operate simultaneously with K-1 Speed 
and limit their area of operation to a section of the parking lot directly in front of the Center.     
 
Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by highlighting the requirements from the previous 
Special Permit as well as the new requirements:  
 

 Special Permit would remain tied to the applicant;  
 A concept plan would be required to show where traffic barricades and vendors would 

be allowed; 
 Overall number of vendors would be reduced from 86 to 65;  

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

February 2, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-02-02 CPCMinutes.doc  3 

 Forty percent of vendors could be food vendors; and 
 Market would be prohibited from operating if the Center was open or holding an event 

excluding the area for the K-1 Speed amusement facility 
 
Commissioner Roland asked if staff knew how many parking spaces the Market needed. 
 
Mr. Shacklett replied the applicant felt the 200 spaces set aside for the Market were more than 
enough to accommodate the parking and allow space for the vendors to set up. 
 
With no further questions for staff, Chairman Bright opened the public hearing. 
 
Mr. Vincent Hirth, 3206 Christi Circle, Garland, Texas, owner of the Market, said 
accommodating the reduced number of vendors and parking spaces would not adversely affect 
the Market. 
 
Commissioner Roland asked how the applicant would convey the new rules to the vendors. 
 
Mr. Hirth replied that he communicated with his vendors via email as well as having a 
representative on site during the hours of operation. 
 
Commissioner DePuy asked if the number of vendors would increase during the warmer months 
of the year. 
 
Mr. Hirth said that although he had a waiting list, he respected the new limits and did not think 
he would need more space. 
 
Commissioner Roland asked if the applicant had been in contact with the owner of the property 
to discuss what would happen if an overflow of parking for the Market caused concerns for K-1 
Speed or other businesses in the area. 
 
Mr. Hirth replied that he communicated with the owner of the property almost weekly and 
would work with him as well as K-1 Speed and other businesses to make sure everything is 
successful. 
 
With no further comments or questions in favor or opposed, Chairman Bright closed the public 
hearing. 
 
Motion: Commission Maxwell made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 16-01 as 

presented; second by Vice Chair Taylor.  Motion approved 7-0. 
 

6. Zoning File 15-33 – Residence on Duck Creek Trail:  Consider and take necessary action on 
a request for a change in zoning from R-1800-M Residential to PD Planned Development to 
accommodate the development of a maximum 60-unit apartment community.  The 4.4 acre site 
is located at 700 N. Plano Road, east side of Plano Road south of Arapaho Road. 
 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

February 2, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-02-02 CPCMinutes.doc  4 

Mr. Shacklett explained the applicant was requesting approval of a change in zoning from R-
1800-M Residential to PD Planned Development to accommodate the development of a 
maximum 60-unit apartment community at 700 N. Plano Road.  The 4.4-acre unplatted tract of 
land supported a single-family home, an oversized garage, a barn and utility building, and was 
bisected by Duck Creek with the eastern half largely located within a flood plain. 
 
Mr. Shacklett stated the applicant was proposing to construct six, four-story buildings to be 
marketed to senior citizens as a low maintenance, for sale, condominiums.  However, from a 
zoning standpoint the buildings would be defined as apartments and governed as such so the 
zoning could not dictate whether the buildings could be either a “for sale” or “for rent” product.   
 
Mr. Shacklett indicated the staff report provided a more detailed description of the proposed 
development regulations for the project as shown below: 
 

 Proposed Regulations 
Building 
Footprint 

Minimum 5,700-square feet / Maximum 9,775-square feet  

Units per 
Building 

Maximum 10 units per building 

Building 
Height 

Required to be 4 stories and no more than 60 feet to top of parapet. 

Dwelling Unit 
Size 

Minimum 1,400 square feet / at least 2 units per building must be a 
minimum of 2,800 square feet 

Unit Density Gross: approximately 12.9 units per gross acre 
 
Net: approximately 25 units per acre (after right-of-way dedication 
and dedication to City Parks and Recreation Department) 

Lot Coverage Maximum 50% of subject property (excluding area for R.O.W. 
dedication and any area located east of the western 100-year flood 
plain line) / as proposed the lot coverage would be approximately 
22.5% of subject property including Parks dedication area, but 
excluding R.O.W. dedication. 

Setbacks No front setback required (reduced due to 75-foot Plano Road 
R.O.W. dedication / Approximately 27 feet of landscaped parkway 
area with 10-foot trail/sidewalk provided along Plano Road 
 
Minimum 10-foot side setback 
 
No rear setback required (buildings are set back over 250 feet from 
the current east property line; however, the setback is reduced once 
eastern portion of property is dedicated to Parks and Recreation 
Department 

Parking Minimum of 2.1 spaces per unit with a minimum of 1.8 spaces per 
unit per building being located in secured first floor garage 
parking.  The additional 0.3 spaces per unit may be surface parking 
as depicted on Exhibit “B” 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

February 2, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-02-02 CPCMinutes.doc  5 

Building 
Materials 

Minimum 64% of each building elevation shall be of masonry 
construction.  The applicant proposes to use brick and stone as well 
as stucco, which is considered non-masonry.  The buildings will be 
constructed in substantial conformance with the attached 
elevations (Exhibits C-1 through C-3) 

Accessory 
Buildings 

Allowed / minimum 50% masonry requirement which must be 
same color and materials as principal buildings 

Landscaping Required minimum of 10% of developable site, not including any 
area east of flood plain line. 

Additional 
Amenities 

1. Minimum 10-foot ceiling heights 
2. Required elevator access 
3. Secured first floor parking 
4. Minimum 2,200-square foot amenity area with features such as 

a swimming pool, clubhouse/game room/multipurpose room, 
and/or open space areas with seating, grill areas, gazebos or 
other elements approved by the City 

5. 10-foot wide trail along Plano Road and along the west side of 
the creek 

 
Mr. Shacklett noted the applicant was requesting a waiver for a landscape buffer along Plano 
Road as well as trees within that same area because of the placement of the buildings along the 
property line and the dedicated right-of-way.  He added that an amenity area was proposed for 
the northeast corner of the property and could possibly include one of three options: swimming 
pool, clubhouse/game room (minimum 350 square feet), or usable open space with trees, water 
feature, seating area and picnic tables. 
 
Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by stating a median opening along Plano Road was not 
being proposed for the development; a two (2) acre park would be dedicated from the western 
flood plain line to the east; and described the proposed construction phases and the 
infrastructure required before a Certificate of Occupancy could be obtained. 
 
Chairman Bright asked which elevations would be facing south towards the adjacent single-
family homes. 
 
Mr. Shacklett replied the shorter side of the buildings would face the adjacent single-family 
homes. 
 
Commissioner Maxwell asked if a landscape buffer would be required on the north side of the 
property.  He also wanted to know exactly where the building front would be relative to the 
existing house on the property. 
 
Mr. Shacklett replied that a landscape buffer would be constructed by the applicant along the 
northern property line; however, the buffer would not have trees or be similar to the buffer along 
the southern property line.   
 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

February 2, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-02-02 CPCMinutes.doc  6 

Regarding the building front, Mr. Shacklett said he did not know the exact location of the 
setback, but it would be located closer than the existing home on the property. 
 
Commissioner Maxwell asked if the proposed use conformed to the Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Mr. Shacklett replied the Plan designated this area as neighborhood services, which could 
include retail, personal services, entertainment, office, plus some neighborhood service districts 
may include senior housing.   
 
Commissioner Frederick asked if staff could recall the average apartment density ratio per acre 
in the city. 
 
Mr. Shacklett replied that a typical A-950 District the density requirement was no more than 18 
units per acre and no more than two stories, but in the proposed project with the developable 2.4 
acres and 60 units that would work out to 25 units per acre.  However, if the 2 acres of 
undevelopable land was taken into consideration the ratio would be 15 units per acre. 
 
Commissioner Roland stated the section of the creek on the property was much wider than 
downstream areas and asked what kept the owner from using the entire parcel of land.  He also 
wanted to know if the final flood plain line ended up going through the area of a proposed 
building could the applicant box up the creek and move it underground. 
 
Mr. Shacklett said that as proposed, the plan was based on where the applicant believed the 
flood plain line would be located; however, if the new flood plain line crossed through the area 
of a proposed building, that building could not be built.   
 
Regarding taking the creek through an underground culvert, Shacklett stated there would have 
to be more discussions with the City’s engineers before anything could happen. 
 
Commissioner Roland asked to confirm the zoning for the property to the north and what was 
the building height allowed for that type of zoning.   
 
Mr. Shacklett replied the property to the north was designated retail/neighborhood services, but 
the subject property was zoned for single-family residential.  As to the height for retail within 
150 feet of a residential district, the height would be limited to one-story or twenty-five feet. 
 
Vice Chair Taylor noted that staff had remarked there would only be right in/right out turning 
movements for the property and wanted to know where the closest opportunity was to make a 
U-turn if a driver wanted to go south from the property. 
 
Mr. Shacklett stated that if a driver was going southbound on Plano Road, the first available U-
turn would be at Creekside Drive.  If a driver was exiting the site and wanted to go southbound, 
they would have to turn right, cross three lanes and move into the left turn lane approximately 
270 feet north of the site to make a U-turn. 
 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

February 2, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-02-02 CPCMinutes.doc  7 

Chairman Bright asked how the proposed site compared in height and distance from residences 
to the apartments going up at Park Bend.  He also wanted to know if the Park Bend apartments 
were allowed through existing zoning or did they come through the Commission for a change in 
zoning. 
 
Mr. Shacklett replied the Park Bend location has three and four story buildings, but the four 
story building was on the Park Bend side of the project which put them approximately 100 feet 
away from the single-family homes compared to 135 feet on the current project. 
 
Regarding the zoning on the Park Bend apartments, Shacklett said the zoning was part of the old 
town of Buckingham that retained its original zoning and allowed multi-family units in all 
districts. 
 
With no further questions for staff, Chairman Bright opened the public hearing. 
 
Mr. Travis Thompson, representing Twin Rivers Capital Partners II, LLC, 1400 Preston Road, 
Suite 450, Plano, Texas, gave a brief history of the property and stated the project would be a 
luxury condominium development geared toward senior citizens who want to stay in the City 
but downsize from larger, high maintenance, single-family homes.   
 
Mr. Thompson reviewed data showing the aging population in the City and how the proposed 
project would satisfy the need of that group of citizens while complementing the adjacent 
neighborhood and complying with the Plan.  
 
Mr. Thompson said they would not have proposed the project if there was not the 100-foot 
Oncor right-of-way between the adjacent single family homes and the subject property.  He 
added that the proposed park and existing creek would also provide a buffer for the single-
family homes on the east side of the property. 
 
Mr. Thompson explained that a condominium referred to a form of ownership as opposed to a 
building and acknowledged that the City could not regulate the type of ownership so they were 
proposing restrictive Covenants Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) that would restrict the 
leasing to 10% in addition to some design features that would be directed towards senior 
citizens. 
 
In recognizing the impact the proposed development would bring to the area, Mr. Thompson 
stated he had spoken with the City’s Police and Traffic Departments and they indicated there 
would be approximately 30 vehicles during peak hours and a developed, well-lit area would be a 
deterrence to crime as opposed to a vacant, unlit area.  He also thought the condominiums 
would not be very attractive to young families because of the lack of yards and playground 
equipment. 
 
Mr. Travis concluded his presentation by acknowledging the concerns expressed over the 
project and the plans they had to mitigate those concerns: 
 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

February 2, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-02-02 CPCMinutes.doc  8 

 Privacy – planting of large growth trees along southern property line as well as adding 
awnings to the fourth floor windows. 

 Lease Restrictions – CC&Rs would contain leasing restrictions to govern the use, 
occupancy and sale (per Texas State Law – Property Code).   

 Age Restrictions – although age restrictions could be written into the CC&Rs, the City 
Attorney and Twin Rivers’ attorney both felt that age restriction would not be 
sustainable if challenged in court. 
 

Commissioner DePuy stated she had been inside the Twin Rivers Senior Living building and 
wanted to know how the proposed project compared to that facility.  She also wanted to know 
how the leasing office would handle requests from families wanting to purchase the 
condominiums.   
 
Mr. Thompson replied that Twin Rivers offered three floor plans ranging in size from 1 
bedroom (under 1,000 square feet) to two bedrooms (approximately 1,250 square feet), which 
meant the proposed condominiums would be larger in size.  He also noted that Twin Rivers was 
a rental community and could legally be age restricted, but if a rental community was built on 
the proposed site it would have to be closer to 120 units as compared to the proposed 60 units. 
 
Regarding families purchasing the condominiums, Mr. Thompson said they could not 
discriminate against a family with children, but there were limits on the number of individuals 
who could occupy a residence.  In addition, the condominiums would be marketed toward 
seniors through different senior publications and means of communication. 
 
Mr. Thompson also wanted to add that Fannie Mae, the government lending agency, would only 
make loans on condominiums where 50% of the condominiums had already been purchased by 
owners or second home owners so he did not feel that would attract younger families. 
 
Commissioner Frederick asked about the phasing and timeline for construction.   
 
Mr. Thompson said they were asking for a six-phase building program and anticipated building 
two buildings at a time.   
 
Commissioner Frederick stated she was a licensed realtor and said she had concerns about the 
2,800 square foot units on the fourth floor and asked the applicant if he would consider 
constructing three story buildings instead of four. 
 
Mr. Thompson replied that if the fourth floor was removed it would eliminate 12 units that 
could possibly be sold to seniors looking to stay in the city and wanted larger homes.  He added 
that if the trepidation was about having too many people in the larger units, the CC&Rs would 
cover that concern. 
 
Vice Chair Taylor asked to follow up on an earlier question regarding the phasing of 
construction and wanted to know if the buildings furthest from Plano Road would be built first. 
 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

February 2, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-02-02 CPCMinutes.doc  9 

Mr. Thompson said that based on their understanding of where the flood plain line would be 
located, the cul-de-sac and amenities would be built first then construction would start on the 
condominiums with the buildings closest to the creek most likely to be first.  
 
Commissioner Roland asked about any compromises made prior to the start of the project and 
with the adjacent homeowners to help alleviate their concerns. 
 
Mr. Thompson replied that before contact was made with the local homeowners association, 
they, as the builders, thought about building a 120 unit senior apartment complex and even 
looked at a commercial or retail development but felt those would be too disruptive to the 
neighborhood.  He added they had also agreed to the extension of the trail, donating land for a 
city park, and a layout for the buildings that would move the surface parking interior to the site.  
 
As for working with the homeowners association, Mr. Thompson said they would be planting 
tall growth trees and adding awnings on the fourth floor units facing the single-family homes, 
both of which were in response to concerns from the neighborhood.   
 
Chairman Bright asked when the applicant had met with the adjacent homeowners association. 
 
Mr. Thompson said they met with the homeowners association on Thursday, January 28th in 
addition to prior conversations with the adjacent homeowners, flyers being passed out and a 
neighborhood breakfast held at Twin Rivers.  He also mentioned that some of those opposed to 
the development suggested building single-family homes, but the site would only allow five or 
six homes and that would not be a practical use of the land. 
 
Chairman Bright called for any other comments in favor. 
 
Mr. Rick Wilder, President of Duck Creek Neighborhood Association, 1614 Villanova Drive, 
Richardson, Texas, confirmed a meeting was held on January 28th with notification sent to all 
700+ members of the association.  Concerns were expressed about height, density, impact on the 
creek and the developers living up to their promises.  At the end of the meeting sheets were 
available for the attendees to sign whether they were in favor or opposed to the project.  Based 
on the tally sheets, the Duck Creek Neighborhood Association was in favor of the development. 
 
Ms. Deborah Saxon, 1705 Auburn Drive, Richardson, Texas, said she was the president of 
Celebration Senior Magazine and most seniors wanted to stay in the City and if they did not 
have an option similar to the proposed project they would leave the city and move elsewhere. 
 
Ms. Donna White, 5200 Keller Springs, Dallas, Texas, stated she was the manager of Twin 
Rivers and pointed out they have a two year waiting list for their community and that seniors 
wanted homes or a place to live that did not have stairs or large yards. 
 
No further comments were received in favor and Chairman Bright called for comments in 
opposition.  
 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

February 2, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-02-02 CPCMinutes.doc  10 

Mr. Patrick Maher, 1802 Tulane Drive, Richardson, Texas, said he was not asking to limit the 
development by age, but had concerns with the large buildings on property that was zoned for 
single-family residences.  He pointed out that although the CC&Rs would require a certain 
number of the condominiums must be owner occupied, there was nothing to prevent the 
condominium association from amending that document in the future. 
 
Mr. Maher noted that at the meeting that a drainage study had not been done on downstream 
impact of the development with the proposed new dam.  He was concerned with the density, the 
lack of a median opening, the building’s proximity to Plano Road, and the requested waivers. 
 
Mr. Anthony Rice, 1505 Creekside Drive, Richardson, Texas, gave a Power Point presentation 
illustrating his concerns about the size of the six-story buildings compared to the adjacent 
homes and impact on home values.  He was also apprehensive about density and maintaining 
and enforcing the deed restrictions. 
 
Mr. Rice stated there had been insufficient contact with the neighborhood association and did 
not know about the project until he saw the sign on the property on Friday, January 29th.  He 
also thought that if the neighborhood association formed a committee and worked with the 
developer it would be possible to come to some sort of an agreement. 
 
Mr. Aaron Hollis, 400 Fireside Drive, Richardson, Texas, said he was a professional 
architect/architectural engineer and agreed with Mr. Rice.  He felt the development was 
basically an apartment building and should be governed under the applicable zoning ordinance 
as opposed to a Planned Development.   
 
Ms. Diana Clawson, Vice President of Duck Creek Neighborhood Association, 800 
Westminster Drive, Richardson, Texas, stated Mr. Wilder, president of the Association, had 
misspoken regarding the meeting on January 28th and maintained that very little notice had been 
given about the meeting and a vote had not been taken.  Ms. Clawson added that she had 
received many emails from members of the association asking for more information before they 
made a decision and asked the Commission to delay their decision on the item. 
 
Mr. Pat Kelly, 2004 Hillhaven Circle, Richardson, Texas, said he had some concerns about the 
information presented during the meeting and where parking for the proposed park would be 
located; the feasibility of turning right out of the site and crossing three lanes of traffic before 
making a U-turn; an increase in storm water runoff; and windows on the south side of the 
buildings facing single-family residences. 
 
Ms. Carmen Herndon, 1500 Creekside Drive, Richardson, Texas, stated that the homes backing 
up to the creek along Auburn Drive were all single story and the height of the proposed 
buildings will look even larger to those residents.  She was also concerned about the impact the 
development would have on Duck Creek. 
 
Chairman Bright asked the applicant if he had any rebuttal comments. 
 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

February 2, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-02-02 CPCMinutes.doc  11 

Mr. Thompson said he would try and address the concerns expressed by those in opposition and 
mentioned the civil engineer for his company was present in the audience: 
 

 Neighborhood Association Meeting – email contact list notifying association members 
of the meeting may not have been up to date due to an election held in late December or 
early January.  He felt most of the attendees were in favor of the use, but may have had 
concerns about the height or other factors. 

 Right-of-way and Setbacks – setback was determined as a result of the 140-foot right-of-
way, 70-foot from center on N. Plano Road resulting in 27 feet between the building line 
and back of curb, which could contain landscaping in the right-of-way if given 
permission to do so. 

 Density – density was based on the entire tract of land – 4.3 acres, whether the land for 
the park was donated or not, which would make the project less than the 18 units per 
acre allowed under the current garden variety apartments regulations. 

 Height – questioned whether the image shown by Mr. Rice was drawn to scale based on 
the height of the 100-foot utility tower and stated the proposed height of the buildings 
would be 60 feet, including the parapet, with the residence view at 40 feet. 

 Fannie Mae – comments were made that a buyer could possibly skirt around the Fannie 
Mae regulations; however, the CC&Rs would be set up so a buyer who needs to go 
through Fannie Mae would not be prevented from doing so by someone who bought a 
number of condominiums and was leasing them out. 

 Awnings – since the neighborhood association meeting there had been a discussion 
about adding awnings on the fourth floor windows facing south to aide in reducing line 
of sight to the single-family homes. 

 Build an Assisted Living facility – per State of Texas regulations a multi-story assisted 
living building would require steel frame construction.  In addition, having an assisted 
living facility with an elevator could cause problems with evacuations during an 
emergency. 

 Neighborhood Association comments before moving forward – getting the members of a 
large association to agree on what should be built on the property before developing 
plans was not practical.  Also, the idea of having retail on the property was not a well-
accepted idea and would bring more traffic and noise into the area. 

 Locating Development elsewhere – the City of Richardson has very few tracts of open 
land available and the proposed site offered a built in buffer with the Oncor right-of-way 
easement. 

 
Mr. Thompson introduced his civil engineer to address concerns about the environmental study. 
 
Mr. Victor Lissiak, 4205 Beltway Drive, Addison, Texas, stated he was the civil engineer for 
the proposed project and asked to address concerns about the flood plain.  He noted there was a 
flood plain study in progress being performed by another engineering firm and the applicant was 
provided an early look at where the probable 100-year flood plain line would be located, which 
helped him prepare a potential site plan.   
 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

February 2, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-02-02 CPCMinutes.doc  12 

Mr. Lissiak explained that the runoff in the creek was part of the Waters of the United States 
and governed under rules and regulations that require developers to detain water in such a 
manner that current runoff would not be increased in velocity or quantity.  He added that a 
developer cannot change a residential runoff coefficient to a commercial coefficient and the 
water must be detained in a manner approved under federal guidelines. 
 
Commissioner Roland asked about any planned adjustments to the dam. 
 
Mr. Lissiak replied the existing dam was being patched and maintained by the property owner 
and if the development was approved, the modification and maintenance of the dam would be 
addressed from an engineering point of view that would be reviewed by the City’s engineers. 
 
Commissioner Ferrell asked for additional information on the flood plain study such as how 
long it takes and who authors the study.  He also wanted to know who would be paying for the 
study. 
 
Mr. Lissiak said the Walter P. Moore Engineering Company was performing the flood study out 
of their Houston office and once the study was approved by all the regulatory agencies the flood 
plain line would be firmly established.  He added that once the flood plain study was complete, 
he would undertake an additional study specific to the site that would show if the development 
would have any adverse effects on the creek. 
 
Mr. Thompson concluded his comments by pointing out possible locations for retention ponds 
and confirmed the project would be thoroughly studied before any construction would take 
place.  In addition, he clarified that the existing dam and pond would be improved and the trees 
along the south side as well as all the other landscaping took into consideration not only the 
needs of the project, but all the surrounding properties. 
 
Chairman Bright noted there were eight appearance cards from those in attendance that were 
opposed to the project but did not wish to speak. 
 
With no further comments of questions in favor or opposed, Chairman Bright closed the public 
hearing. 
 
Commissioner Roland asked staff who maintained the trees under the high voltage lines in the 
utility right-of-way. 
 
Mr. Shacklett said he thought the trees were maintained by the City’s Parks Department.  He 
also noted that if someone wanted to plant canopy trees in the utility right-of-way, Oncor would 
probably not allow that to happen. 
 
Chairman Bright asked if staff could show a comparison between the existing utility lines and a 
60-foot tall building.  He also wanted to know the height limitations currently allowed for the 
property. 
 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

February 2, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-02-02 CPCMinutes.doc  13 

Mr. Shacklett replied he did not have a graphic to show that comparison; however, the ridge 
point of the single-family home on the property was approximately 30 feet tall so a 60-foot 
building would be twice as tall as the house.  He added that the current height limitations on the 
property were two-stories or 40 feet. 
 
Mr. Shacklett said he wanted to respond to some questions that had been posed during the 
public hearing: 
 

 Southbound U-turn at Creekside Drive – the distance was approximately 300-350 feet 
from the U-turn to the proposed driveway. 

 Northbound U-turn to Median Opening – 300-350 feet to right turn from the proposed 
driveway to the nearest median opening to make a U-turn and go southbound. 

 Proposed Park – City’s Parks Department would have to look at continuing the trail 
either on the east or west side of the pond and whether it would be accessed via the trail 
as opposed to having available parking. 

 Drainage – if the project was approved, the City’s engineers would become much more 
involved during the development plan process to insure the requirements for retention, 
runoff and storm water quality were addressed. 

 
Chairman Bright asked if correspondence had been received from the residences along 
Creekside Drive that would back up to the proposed project. 
 
Mr. Shacklett replied that staff had received one letter in opposition from the eight homes within 
the 200-foot notification area.  However, a 4-5 page petition had been received from Mr. Rice 
with signatures in opposition from residents on both Creekside and Fireside Drives.  In addition, 
four pages from the January 28th meeting contained 24 signatures in favor and 18 signatures in 
opposition. 
 
Commissioner Frederick asked how far in advance were the zoning change signs posted on the 
property. 
 
Mr. Shacklett said that state law mandates public notice letters be mailed to property owners 
within 200 feet of the property in question 10 days prior to a public hearing so those notices 
went out on Friday, January 22nd and the signs were posted on the same day. 
 
Commissioners Maxwell and Ferrell stated they liked many aspects of the proposed project and 
thought it fulfilled a need in the community, and felt the developer had a positive track record 
when building in the city, but they did have an issue with the building height especially along 
the southern property line. 
 
Commissioner Frederick concurred with Mr. Maxwell and Mr. Ferrell and suggested that three 
story buildings on the southern property line would be sufficient and then the four stories along 
the northern property line would act as a buffer from any future retail.  She also reiterated her 
concerns that a 2,800 square foot unit was too large and suggested reducing the size. 
 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

February 2, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-02-02 CPCMinutes.doc  14 

Commissioner Springs thought the concerns expressed were more about the physical aspects of 
the project as opposed to the functional aspects.  He also thought there might be a way to 
modify the plan without completely rejecting it.    
 
Commissioner DePuy concurred with Ms. Frederick and thought the project could act as a 
buffer between the single-family homes and any future retail development on the hard corner of 
Plano and Arapaho Roads.  In addition, she pointed out that based on previous experience; 
condominiums were notoriously hard to sell. 
 
Vice Chair Taylor thought the proposed development would be beautiful and would have a 
place in the City, but reiterated the concerns about height and suggested the possibility of 
having opaque windows on the south side of the buildings. 
 
Commissioner Roland said he liked the idea of first floor covered parking, but thought the right-
in/right-out and transition across three lanes of traffic to make a U-turn would be a problem.  He 
suggested speaking with Oncor about the median openings to see if there might be a solution to 
the problem. 
 
Chairman Bright concurred with Mr. Springs’ comments about the physical aspects of the 
project and Mr. Roland’s comments about traffic flow, and wanted to know the Commission’s 
thoughts on possibly continuing the item versus taking a final vote. 
 
Commissioner Southard asked if the orientation of the buildings could be changed to better fit 
the size of the property. 
 
Mr. Thompson replied the current concept plan presented a better view line for the single-family 
homes along the southern property line.  He also asked if the Commission could approve the use 
then allow them time to make any physical changes to the site plan. 
 
Commissioner Maxwell felt it was not appropriate for the Commission to approve part of the 
proposal while allowing the remainder to go forward. 
 
Mr. Shacklett pointed out that if a motion was made and mentioned reducing the height of 
building, he cautioned the Commission to be cognizant of the fact that a reduction would affect 
the number of units, first floor parking, and minimum unit size.  He added that if the 
Commission wanted to continue the item, there were two options: continue indefinitely, which 
would require new public hearing notices, or continue it to a date specific. 
 
Commissioner Maxwell asked if the applicant had a preference. 
 
Mr. Thompson said he would prefer a date specific continuation. 
 
Motion: Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to continue the item to February 16, 2016; 

second by Vice Chair Taylor.    
 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

February 2, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-02-02 CPCMinutes.doc  15 

Mr. Shacklett noted that the Commission had closed the public hearing and 
suggested it was up to the Commission if they wanted to include in the motion a 
continuance of the public hearing to a date specific.   
 
Commissioner Maxwell so amended his motion to continue the public hearing to 
February 16, 2016 and Vice Chair Taylor re-confirmed the second. 
 
Motion approved 7-0. 

 
ADJOURN 
 
With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Bright adjourned the regular 
business meeting at 10:14 p.m. 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Gerald Bright, Chairman 
City Plan Commission 
 

APPROVED




